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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2). Yes [  ]
No [X]
As of August 1, 2017, the registrant had 12,600,418 shares of Class A common stock, $0.001 par value, outstanding
and 3,841,667 shares of Class B common stock, $0.001 par value, outstanding.
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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC. 
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
($ in thousands, except share and per share data)

June 30,
2017

December
31, 2016

(unaudited)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $27,529 $12,214
Restricted cash 14,162 11,938
Accounts receivable, net, prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,223 2,815
Advanced commissions, net 30,706 37,001
Income taxes receivable 1,282 —
Total current assets 75,902 63,968
Property and equipment, net 4,572 4,022
Goodwill 41,076 41,076
Intangible assets, net 6,884 7,907
Deferred tax asset 28,151 8,181
Other assets 12 193
Total assets $156,597 $125,347

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $30,133 $29,680
Deferred revenue 298 430
Income taxes payable — 2,121
Due to member 521 3,282
Other current liabilities 1 126
Total current liabilities 30,953 35,639
Due to member 28,078 9,460
Other liabilities 43 170
Total liabilities 59,074 45,269
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Class A common stock (par value $0.001 per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized;
12,600,418 and 8,156,249 shares issued as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively; and 12,469,247 and 8,036,705 shares outstanding as of June 30, 2017 and
December 31, 2016, respectively)

12 8

Class B common stock (par value $0.001 per share, 20,000,000 shares authorized; 3,841,667
and 6,841,667 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively)

4 7

Preferred stock (par value $0.001 per share, 5,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and
outstanding as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016) — —

Additional paid-in capital 66,109 47,849
(1,307 ) (1,122 )
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Treasury stock, at cost (131,171 and 119,544 shares as of June 30, 2017 and December 31,
2016, respectively)
Retained earnings 11,637 1,420
Total Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. stockholders’ equity 76,455 48,162
Noncontrolling interests 21,068 31,916
Total stockholders’ equity 97,523 80,078
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $156,597 $125,347
See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income (unaudited)
($ in thousands, except share and per share data)

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues (premium equivalents of $98,896 and $76,977 for the three months
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively and $189,836 and $147,717 for
the six months ended June 30, 2016, respectively)

$61,783 $ 44,494 $117,651 $ 86,984

Operating expenses:
Third-party commissions 35,108 25,859 66,543 51,849
Credit card and ACH fees 1,232 974 2,415 1,857
Selling, general and administrative 14,697 11,697 29,954 23,667
Depreciation and amortization 992 797 1,930 1,532
Total operating expenses 52,029 39,327 100,842 78,905
Income from operations 9,754 5,167 16,809 8,079

Other expense:
Interest expense 1 100 — 155
Tax Receivable Agreement expense — 244 — 429
Fair value adjustment to contingent acquisition consideration — 15 — 15
Other expense 1 1 4 3
Net income before income taxes 9,752 4,807 16,805 7,477
Provision for income taxes 2,800 537 1,331 921
Net income 6,952 4,270 15,474 6,556
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 2,569 2,413 5,257 3,794
Net income attributable to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. $4,383 $ 1,857 $10,217 $ 2,762

Per share data:
Net income per share attributable to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc.
Basic $0.38 $ 0.24 $1.00 $ 0.36
Diluted $0.35 $ 0.24 $0.91 $ 0.36
Weighted average Class A common shares outstanding
Basic 11,550,2047,592,972 10,228,5647,578,264
Diluted 12,365,9147,732,664 11,220,6877,716,202

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (unaudited)
($ in thousands, except share data)

Health Insurance Innovations, Inc.
Class A Common
Stock

Class B Common
Stock Treasury Stock

Shares AmountShares Amount
Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Shares Amount

(Accumulated
Deficit)
Retained
Earnings

Noncontrolling
Interests

Stockholders’
Equity

Balance as of
January 1, 2016 7,759,092 $ 8 6,841,667 $ 7 $44,591 150,993 $(1,542) $ (3,093 ) $ 28,083 $68,054

Net income — — — — — — — 4,513 8,596 13,109
Issuance of
Class A
common stock
under equity
compensation
plans

246,164 — — — 19 — — — — 19

Class A
common stock
withheld in
Treasury from
restricted share
vesting

(21,397 ) — — — — 21,397 (160 ) — — (160 )

Forfeiture of
restricted stock
held in
Treasury

(43,600 ) — — — 345 43,600 (345 ) — — —

Issuances of
restricted shares
from treasury

75,749 — — — (721 ) (75,749 ) 721 — — —

Issuances of
Class A
common stock
from treasury

20,697 — — — (183 ) (20,697 ) 204 — — 21

Stock
compensation
expense

— — — — 3,792 — — — — 3,792

Distributions — — — — 6 — — — (4,763 ) (4,757 )
Balance as of
December 31,
2016

8,036,705 $ 8 6,841,667 $ 7 $47,849 119,544 $(1,122) $ 1,420 $ 31,916 $80,078

Net income — — — — — — — 10,217 5,257 15,474
Issuance of
Class A
common stock
in private

3,000,000 3 — — 16,484 — — — — 16,487
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offering
Exchange of
Series B
Membership
interest and
exchange and
cancellation of
Class B
common stock

— — (3,000,000) (3 ) — — — — (14,371 ) (14,374 )

Issuance of
Class A
common stock
under equity
compensation
plans

1,444,169 1 — — 19 — — — — 20

Class A
common stock
withheld in
Treasury from
restricted share
vesting

(11,627 ) — — — — 11,627 (185 ) — — (185 )

Stock
compensation
expense

— — — — 1,755 — — — — 1,755

Contributions
(distributions) — — — — 2 — — — (1,734 ) (1,732 )

Balance as of
June 30, 2017
(unaudited)

12,469,247 $ 12 3,841,667 $ 4 $66,109 131,171 $(1,307) $ 11,637 $ 21,068 $97,523

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited)
($ in thousands)

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2017 2016

Operating activities:
Net income $15,474 $6,556
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Stock-based compensation 1,755 969
Depreciation and amortization 1,930 1,532
Deferred income taxes 762 (249 )
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in restricted cash (2,224 ) (7,776 )
Decrease in accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other assets 773 178
Decrease (increase) in advanced commissions 6,295 (8,272 )
(Increase) decrease in income taxes receivable (1,282 ) 591
(Decrease) increase in income taxes payable (2,121 ) 296
Increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 297 3,381
Decrease in deferred revenue (132 ) (224 )
Increase in due to member — 429
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 21,527 (2,589 )
Investing activities:
Capitalized internal-use software and website development costs (1,410 ) (1,609 )
Purchases of property and equipment (47 ) (9 )
Net cash used in investing activities (1,457 ) (1,618 )
Financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings under revolving line of credit — 7,500
Payments on borrowings under revolving line of credit — (1,000 )
Payments for contingent acquisition consideration — (532 )
Payments for noncompete obligation (96 ) (96 )
Class A common stock withheld in treasury from restricted share vesting (185 ) (39 )
Issuances of Class A common stock under equity compensation plans 20 —
Issuances of Class A common stock from treasury — 16
Distributions to member (4,494 ) (68 )
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (4,755 ) 5,781
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 15,315 1,574
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 12,214 7,695
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $27,529 $9,269

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities:
Change in due to member related to Exchange Agreement $18,619 $—
Change in deferred tax asset related to Exchange Agreement (20,732 ) —
Issuance of Class A common stock in a private offering related to Exchange Agreement 16,487 —
Exchange of Class B membership interests related to Exchange Agreement (14,374 ) —

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(unaudited)

1. Organization, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

In this quarterly report, unless the context suggests otherwise, references to the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer (1)
prior to the February 13, 2013 closing of an initial public offering (“IPO”) of the Class A common stock of Health
Insurance Innovations, Inc. and related transactions, to Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC (“HPI”) and its consolidated
subsidiaries and (2) after the IPO and related transactions, to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries. The term “HII” refers to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. on a stand-alone basis, and the term “HPIH”
refers to Health Plan Intermediaries Holdings, LLC, a subsidiary of HII and a consolidated subsidiary of the
Company, on a stand-alone basis. The terms “HealthPocket” or “HP” refer to HealthPocket, Inc., our wholly owned
subsidiary which was acquired by HPIH on July 14, 2014.

Business Description

We are a developer, distributor and cloud-based administrator of affordable individual health and family insurance
plans (“IFP”) which include short-term medical (“STM”) insurance plans and guaranteed-issue and underwritten Health
Benefit Insurance Plans, previously referred to as hospital indemnity plans.

We also develop, distribute and administer supplemental products which include a variety of additional insurance
and non-insurance products such as pharmacy benefit cards, dental plans, vision plans, cancer/critical illness plans,
deductible and gap protection plans, and life insurance policies that are frequently purchased as supplements to IFP.

We design and structure these IFPs and supplemental products on behalf of insurance carriers and discount benefit
providers. These products are marketed to individuals primarily through our internal distribution network and an
external distribution network consisting of independently owned and operated licensed-agent call centers.

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financial information.
Accordingly, they do not include all of the financial information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete
financial statements. The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Health Insurance
Innovations, Inc., its wholly-owned subsidiaries, one of which is a Variable Interest Entity (“VIE”), of which the
Company is the primary beneficiary. See Note 2 for further information on the VIE. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The results of
operations for business combinations are included from their respective dates of acquisition.

Noncontrolling interests are included in the condensed consolidated balance sheets as a component of stockholders’
equity that is not attributable to the equity of the Company. We report separately the amounts of consolidated net
income attributable to us and noncontrolling interests.

The information included in this quarterly report, including the interim condensed consolidated financial statements
and the accompanying notes, should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and
related notes included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016. The
condensed consolidated results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 are not necessarily indicative of the
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results to be expected for any interim subsequent period or for the year ending December 31, 2017.

As an “emerging growth company” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”), we
benefit from certain temporary exemptions from various reporting requirements, including, but not limited to, not
being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and
reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements. We
have also elected under the JOBS Act to delay the adoption of new and revised accounting pronouncements applicable
to public companies until such pronouncements are made applicable to private companies. As a result of this election,
our financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with public company effective dates. These
exemptions will apply for a period of five years following the completion of our IPO which closed on February 13,
2013. However, if we record $1.07 billion in total annual gross revenue before that time or if the market value of our
common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of any June 30 before that time, we would cease
to be an emerging growth company as of the following December 31.

7
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is an update to our significant accounting policies described in Note 1, Organization, Basis of
Presentation, and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in our audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2016 included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates, judgments, and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the condensed consolidated
financial statements. These estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
periods. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In the following summary of recent accounting pronouncements, all references to effective dates of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) guidance relate to nonpublic entities. As noted above, we have elected to delay
the adoption of new and revised accounting pronouncements applicable to public companies until such
pronouncements are made applicable to private companies under provisions of the JOBS Act.

Recently adopted accounting pronouncements

In March 2016, the FASB issued an amendment to its accounting guidance for stock compensation as part of the
FASB’s simplification initiative. The amendments affect all entities that issue share-based payment awards to their
employees. The areas for simplification involve several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment
transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and
classification on the statement of cash flows. Some of the areas for simplification apply only to nonpublic entities. For
public business entities, the amendments in this update are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15,
2016, and interim periods within those annual periods. For all other entities, the amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15,
2018. Early adoption is permitted for any entity in any interim or annual period.

The Company elected to early adopt this update during the quarter ended March 31, 2017. As described in Note 19 in
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company’s former Chief Executive
Officer exercised 1.0 million Stock Appreciation Rights in February 2017. Early adoption of this update was favorable
in light of the material exercise and as a result of this adoption, during the three months ended March 31, 2017, excess
tax benefits of $3.3 million related to vested and exercised share-based compensation awards were recorded as a
decrease in income tax expense and a $0.38 increase in our first-quarter basic earnings per share in the condensed
consolidated statement of income.

Recently issued accounting pronouncements

In May 2017, the FASB issued a new accounting standard update which clarifies when to account for a change to the
terms or conditions of a share-based payment award as a modification. Under the new guidance, modification
accounting is required only if the fair value, the vesting conditions, or the classification of the award (as equity or
liability) changes as a result of the change in terms or conditions. The amendments are effective for all entities for
annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is
permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard on the consolidated financial statements
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and disclosures, but do not expect it to have a significant impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued a new accounting standard update on simplifying the accounting for goodwill
impairment. The new guidance eliminates the requirement to calculate the implied fair value of goodwill (i.e., Step 2
of the goodwill impairment test) to measure a goodwill impairment charge. Instead, entities will record an impairment
charge based on the excess of a reporting unit’s carrying amount over its fair value. This guidance will be effective for
interim or annual goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019 and will be applied
prospectively. Early adoption is permitted for any impairment tests performed after January 1, 2017. The Company
does not believe that this guidance will have a material impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements.

In November 2016, the FASB issued an update which requires companies to include amounts generally described as
restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents in cash and cash equivalents when reconciling beginning-of-period and
end-of-period total

8
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amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The amendments in this update are effective for public business
entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those fiscal years. For all other
entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period.
If an entity early adopts the amendments in an interim period, any adjustments should be reflected as of the beginning
of the fiscal year that includes that interim period. We have not yet completed the analysis of how adopting this update
will affect our condensed consolidated financial statements and disclosures. 

In August 2016, the FASB issued an update to the presentation of certain cash receipts and cash payments as
presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. The update provides amendments to the codification for eight
specific cash flow issues such as the classification of debt prepayment or debt extinguishment costs to the
classification of the proceeds from the settlement of insurance claims. The amendments in this update are effective for
public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those fiscal
years. For all other entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and
interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted, including
adoption in an interim period. We will adopt this guidance in reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
We are currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on our condensed consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued an amendment to its accounting guidance for leases to increase transparency and
comparability by requiring organizations to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and
increasing disclosures about key leasing arrangements. The amendment updates the critical determinant from capital
versus operating to whether a contract is or contains a lease because lessees are required to recognize lease assets and
lease liabilities for all leases – financing and operating – other than short term. The amendments in this update are
effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within
those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. We will adopt this guidance in reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2018. The Company is still evaluating the effect of the update on our financial statements and internal
controls over financial reporting but does not believe that the impact of adopting this pronouncement will be material
to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued an amendment to its accounting guidance related to revenue recognition. The
amendment clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue. The guidance is based on the principle that revenue is
recognized to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The guidance also requires additional
disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer
contracts, including significant judgments and changes in the judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to
obtain or fulfill a contract. For a public entity, the amendments in this update and the related deferral guidance are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within that
reporting period. For all other entities, the amendments in this update are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
Early adoption is not permitted. We will adopt this guidance in reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
The new standard is required to be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying it recognized at the date of initial application. We have not yet selected
a transition method nor have we determined the impact of the new standard on our condensed consolidated financial
statements. We have not determined the effect of the update on our internal controls over financial reporting or other
changes in business practices and processes but will do so in the design and implementation phase which is to begin
during the current calendar year.

2. Variable Interest Entities

Edgar Filing: Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. - Form 10-Q

15



As of June 30, 2017, we are the primary beneficiary of one entity, HPIH, that constitutes a VIE pursuant to FASB
guidance. HPIH is a VIE as the voting rights of the investors are not proportional to their obligations to absorb the
expected losses of HPIH. As of June 30, 2017, we hold 100% of the voting power in HPIH, but 76.4% of the total
membership and economic interest, and the other members of HPIH hold no voting rights in HPIH. Further,
substantially all of the activities of HPIH are conducted on behalf of a membership with disproportionately few voting
rights. We have concluded that we are the primary beneficiary of HPIH, and, therefore, should consolidate HPIH since
we have the power to direct the activities of HPIH that most significantly impact its economic performance. Our
equity interest in HPIH obligates us to absorb losses of HPIH and gives us the right to receive benefits from HPIH
related to the day-to-day operations of the entity, both of which could potentially be significant to HPIH. As such, our
maximum exposure as a result of our involvement in this VIE is the net income or loss allocated to us based on our
interest.

9
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3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Our goodwill balance as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 of $41.1 million arose from previous acquisitions
as described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016. There have been no changes
in the carrying amounts of goodwill.

Other intangible assets

Our other intangible assets arose primarily from acquisitions described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2016 and consist of a brand, the carrier network, distributor relationships, customer
relationships, noncompete agreements and capitalized software. Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their
useful lives from two to fifteen years.

Major classes of intangible assets as of June 30, 2017 consisted of the following ($ in thousands):

Weighted-average Amortization (years)
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Intangible
Assets,
net

Brand 14.1 $ 1,377 $ (353 ) $ 1,024
Carrier network 5.0 40 (40 ) —
Distributor relationships 6.8 4,059 (3,130 ) 929
Noncompete agreements 4.7 987 (972 ) 15
Customer relationships 5.8 1,484 (1,140 ) 344
Capitalized software 6.7 8,571 (3,999 ) 4,572
Total intangible assets $ 16,518 $ (9,634 ) $ 6,884

Major classes of intangible assets as of December 31, 2016 consisted of the following ($ in thousands):

Weighted-average Amortization (years)
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Intangible
Assets,
net

Brand 14.1 $ 1,377 $ (311 ) $ 1,066
Carrier network 5.0 40 (40 ) —
Distributor relationships 6.8 4,059 (2,831 ) 1,228
Noncompete agreements 4.7 987 (881 ) 106
Customer relationships 5.8 1,484 (1,125 ) 359
Capitalized software 6.7 8,571 (3,423 ) 5,148
Total intangible assets $ 16,518 $ (8,611 ) $ 7,907

Amortization expense for the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $512,000 and $557,000, respectively,
and for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $1.0 million, and $1.1 million, respectively.

10
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Estimated annual pretax amortization of intangible assets for the remainder of 2017 and in each of the next five years
and thereafter are as follows ($ in thousands):
Remainder of 2017 $942
2018 1,725
2019 1,338
2020 1,338
2021 685
2022 114
Thereafter 742
Total $6,884

4. Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following as of ($ in thousands):
June 30,
2017

December 31,
2016

Carriers and vendors payable $14,549 $ 11,385
Commissions payable 5,513 5,710
Accrued wages 4,036 4,206
Accrued refunds 2,115 3,238
Accounts payable 792 928
Accrued professional fees 1,150 910
Accrued credit card/ACH fees 406 430
Accrued restructuring — 3
Other accrued expenses 1,572 2,870
Total accounts payable and accrued expenses $30,133 $ 29,680

5. Stockholders’ Equity

On February 13, 2013, we completed our IPO by issuing 4,666,667 shares of our Class A common stock, par value
$0.001 per share, at a price to the public of $14.00 per share of Class A common stock. In addition, we issued
8,666,667 shares of our Class B common stock, of which 8,580,000 shares of Class B common stock were obtained
by HPI, and 86,667 shares of Class B common stock were obtained by Health Plan Intermediaries Sub, LLC (“HPIS”),
of which HPI is the managing member. In addition, we granted the underwriters of the IPO the right to purchase
additional shares of Class A common stock to cover over-allotments (the “over-allotment option”).

Our authorized capital stock consists of 100,000,000 shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.001 per share,
20,000,000 shares of Class B common stock, par value $0.001 per share, and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par
value $0.001 per share.

Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock

Each share of Class A common stock and Class B common stock entitles its holders to one vote per share on all
matters to be voted upon by the stockholders, and holders of each class will vote together as a single class on all such
matters. Holders of shares of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock vote together as a single class on
all matters presented to our stockholders for their vote or approval, except as otherwise required by applicable law. As
of June 30, 2017, the Class A common stockholders had 76.4% of the voting power in HII and the Class B common
stockholders had 23.6% of the voting power in HII. Holders of shares of our Class A common stock have 100% of the
economic interest in HII. Holders of Class B common stock do not have an economic interest in HII.
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The determination to pay dividends, if any, to our Class A common stockholders will be made by our Board of
Directors. We do not, however, expect to declare or pay any cash or other dividends in the foreseeable future on our
Class A common stock, as we intend to reinvest any cash flow generated by operations in our business. We may enter
into credit agreements or other borrowing arrangements in the future that prohibit or restrict our ability to declare or
pay dividends on our Class A common stock. In the event of liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of HII, the holders
of Class A common stock are entitled to share ratably in
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all assets remaining after payment of liabilities, subject to prior distribution rights of preferred stock, if any, then
outstanding. The holders of our Class A common stock have no preemptive or conversion rights or other subscription
rights. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to the Class A common stock. The rights,
preferences and privileges of holders of our common stock will be subject to those of the holders of any shares of our
preferred stock we may issue in the future.

Class B common stockholders will not be entitled to any dividend payments. In the event of any dissolution,
liquidation, or winding up of our affairs, whether voluntary or involuntary, after payment of our debts and other
liabilities and making provision for any holders of our preferred stock that have a liquidation preference, our Class B
common stockholders will not be entitled to receive any of our assets. In the event of our merger or consolidation with
or into another company in connection with which shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock
(together with the related membership interests) are converted into, or become exchangeable for, shares of stock, other
securities or property (including cash), each Class B common stockholder will be entitled to receive the same number
of shares of stock as is received by Class A common stockholders for each share of Class A common stock, and will
not be entitled, for each share of Class B common stock, to receive other securities or property (including cash). No
holders of Class B common stock will have preemptive rights to purchase additional shares of Class B common stock.

Exchange Agreement

On February 13, 2013, we entered into an exchange agreement (the “Exchange Agreement”) with the holders of the
Series B Membership Interests of HPIH (“Series B Membership Interests”). All of the Series B Membership Interests
are held by Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC (“HPI”) and Health Plan Intermediaries Sub, LLC (“HPIS”), which are two
entities owned by Michael Kosloske, the founder and a director of our company. Pursuant to and subject to the terms
of the Exchange Agreement and the amended and restated limited liability company agreement of HPIH, holders of
Series B Membership Interests, at any time and from time to time, may exchange one or more Series B Membership
Interests, together with an equal number of shares of our Class B common stock, for shares of our Class A common
stock on a one-for-one basis, subject to equitable adjustments for stock splits, stock dividends and reclassifications.
See Note 9 from our December 31, 2016 audited consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 for further information on the Exchange Agreement.

On February 1, 2014, a registration statement on Form S-3 became effective under which we registered 8,566,667
shares of our Class A common stock for resale from time to time by HPI and HPIS, of which all such shares are
issuable upon the exchange of an equivalent number of Series B Membership Interests (together with an equal number
of shares of our Class B common stock).

On March 13, 2017, HPI and HPIS (the “Selling Stockholders”) completed a secondary underwritten public offering of
3,000,000 shares of our Class A common stock under the above-described Form S-3 registration statement. In
connection with the offering, on March 8, 2017, we entered into an underwriting agreement with Canaccord Genuity
Inc., Cantor Fitzgerald & Co., Northland Securities, Inc., and Lake Street Capital Markets, LLC, collectively as the
underwriters, and the Selling Stockholders. Immediately prior to the completion of the offering, we issued 3,000,000
shares of Class A common stock to the Selling Stockholders. In exchange for the issuance of the shares, we
immediately acquired 3,000,000 Series B Membership Interests, together with an equal number of shares of our Class
B common stock from the Selling Stockholders. These Series B Membership Interests were immediately recapitalized
into Series A Membership Interests in HPIH. The Selling Stockholders agreed to immediately after the exchange sell
to the underwriter for resale all 3,000,000 shares of Class A common stock at a public offering price of $14.00 per
share ($13.16 per share, net of underwriting discounts), for net proceeds of $39.5 million. No shares were sold by the
Company in this offering. The acquisition of the Series B Membership Interests resulted in a decrease in
noncontrolling interests with an offsetting increase in stockholders’ equity as of March 31, 2017 to reflect the decrease
in the noncontrolling interest’s investment in HPIH. See Note 9 for further discussion on the tax receivable agreement
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we entered into with holders of Series B Membership Interests.

Preferred Stock

Our board of directors has the authority to issue shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions thereof, including dividend rights, dividend rates, conversion rights, voting
rights, terms of redemption, redemption prices, liquidation preferences and the number of shares constituting any
series or the designation of such series, without further vote or action by the stockholders.

The issuance of preferred stock may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of HII
without further action by the stockholders and may adversely affect the voting and other rights of the holders of Class
A common stock. At present, we have no plans to issue any preferred stock.

12
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Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is recorded at cost. As of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, we held 131,171 and 119,544 shares
of treasury stock, respectively, recorded at a cost of $1.3 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

Tax Obligation Settlements and Treasury Stock Transactions

Treasury stock is recorded pursuant to the surrender of shares by certain employees to satisfy statutory tax
withholding obligations on vested restricted stock awards. In addition, certain forfeited stock-based awards are
transferred to and recorded as treasury stock, and certain restricted stock awards have been granted from shares in
Treasury, and certain forfeited awards.

During the six months ended June 30, 2017, 11,627 shares were transferred to Treasury as a result of surrendered
shares of vested restricted stock awards. No shares were transferred to Treasury during the three months ended June
30, 2017 as a result of forfeitures of restricted stock awards. There was no other Treasury activity during the six
months ended June 30, 2017.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, 2,399 and 6,531 shares, respectively, were transferred to
Treasury as a result of surrendered shares of vested restricted stock awards and 1,623 and 15,280 options,
respectively, were exercised and converted to Class A common stock out of treasury. During both the three and six
months ended June 30, 2016, 3,200 shares, respectively, were transferred to Treasury as a result of forfeitures of
restricted stock awards. 

Registration Statement on Form S-3

On May 5, 2017 the Company filed a registration statement on Form S-3, effective May 19, 2017, to offer and sell,
from time to time, up to $150 million of any combination of debt securities, Class A Common Stock, preferred stock,
warrants, subscription rights, units, or purchase contracts as described in the related prospectus. Securities may be sold
in one or more classes or series and in amounts, at prices and on terms that we will determine at the times of the
offerings and we may offer the securities independently or together in any combination for sale directly to purchasers
or through underwriters, dealers or agents to be designated at a future date. We intend to use the net proceeds from the
sale of the securities for general corporate purposes, including potentially expanding existing businesses, acquiring
businesses and investing in other business opportunities. At June 30, 2017, the Company had not sold any securities
under this Registration Statement.

6. Stock-based Compensation

We maintain one stock-based incentive plan, the Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan (the
“LTIP”), which became effective February 7, 2013, under which stock appreciation rights (“SARs”), restricted stock,
restricted stock units and other types of equity and cash incentive awards may be granted to employees, non-employee
directors and service providers. The LTIP expires after ten years, unless prior to that date the maximum number of
shares available for issuance under the plan has been issued or our Board of Directors terminates this plan. At its
inception, 1,250,000 shares of Class A common stock were reserved for issuance under the LTIP. The Company’s
shareholders approved an increase of 2,000,000 shares of Class A common stock reserved for issuance in May 2017
under the LTIP and as of June 30, 2017, there were 5,250,000 total shares reserved under the LTIP.

Expense for stock-based compensation is recognized based upon estimated grant date fair value and is amortized over
the requisite service period of the awards using the accelerated method. We offer awards which vest based on service
conditions, performance conditions or market conditions. For grants of SARs and stock options, we apply the
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Black-Scholes option-pricing model, a Monte Carlo Simulation, or a lattice model, depending on the vesting
conditions, in determining the fair value of share-based payments to employees. These models incorporate various
assumptions, including expected volatility and expected term. Volatility is calculated using the Company’s trading
history. The expected term of the awards represents the estimated period of time until exercise, giving consideration to
the contractual terms, vesting schedules and expectations of future employee behavior. The Company uses its best
estimate and the simplified method for “plain vanilla” awards under GAAP for calculating the expected term, where
applicable. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant with a
term equivalent to the expected term. Compensation expense is recognized only for those awards expected to vest,
with forfeitures estimated based on our historical experience and future expectations.

None of the stock-based compensation was capitalized during the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

13
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The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was used with the following weighted average assumptions:
Six Months Ended June
30,
2017 2016

Risk-free rate 1.7 % 1.2 %
Expected life 4.8 years 4.6 years
Expected volatility 64.1 % 55.4 %
Expected dividend none none

The following table summarizes restricted shares, SARs, and stock options granted during the three and six months
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

Three
Months
Ended
June 30,

Six
Months
Ended
June 30,

20172016 20172016
Restricted shares 855 27 855 27
SARs 85 569 85 584
Stock options — — — —

The weighted average fair value of Restricted shares granted during both the three and six months ended June 30,
2017, was $21.94 having an aggregate intrinsic value of $18.8 million. The weighted average fair value of SARs
granted during the both the three and six months ended June 30, 2017, was $11.70. For each of the three and six
months ended June 30, 2016, the weighted average fair value of Restricted shares granted was $6.77 having an
aggregate intrinsic value of $180,000. The weighted average fair value of SARs granted during the three and six
months ended June 30, 2016 was $3.26 and $3.25, respectively. For all new grants in 2017 and 2016, the Company
utilized an estimated pre-vest forfeiture rate of 7.0%.

The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017
and 2016 ($ in thousands):

Three
Months
Ended June
30,

Six Months
Ended June
30,

2017 2016 2017 2016
Restricted shares $680 $130 $1,060 $295
SARs 249 323 682 604
Stock options 5 29 13 70

$934 $482 $1,755 $969

The following table summarizes unrecognized stock-based compensation and the remaining weighted average period
over which such stock-based compensation is expected to be recognized as of June 30, 2017 ($ in thousands):

Unrecognized
Expense Weighted Average Remaining years

Restricted shares $ 15,104 2.4
SARs 1,731 2.1
Stock options 3 0.4

$ 16,838
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The amounts in the table above do not include the cost of any additional awards that may be granted in future periods
nor any changes in our forfeiture rate.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 there were 212,700 and 1.3 million SARs exercised,
respectively, resulting in an increase of 150,000 and 934,100 issued Class A common stock, respectively. No SARs
were exercised during the three and six months ended June 30, 2016. During the three and six months ended June 30,
2017 there were 17,500 outstanding SARs forfeited. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, 12,000 and
22,000 SARs were forfeited, respectively.
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During the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 there were 10,800 and 18,800 options exercised, respectively,
and 1,600 and 15,300 options exercised during the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, respectively. During the
three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, there were no options forfeited.

For the three months ended June 30, 2017, there was no cash outflow with respect to shares redeemed to cover the
recipient’s tax obligations for the settlement of stock based incentive plans. For the six months ended June 30, 2017,
there was $185,000 of cash outflow with respect to shares redeemed to cover the recipient’s tax obligations. For the
three and six months ended June 30, 2016, respectively, there was cash outflow of $14,000 and $39,000 with respect
to shares redeemed to cover the recipient’s tax obligations.

We recognized income tax benefits from stock-based activity of $280,000 and $3.6 million for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2017, respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, we recognized income
tax benefits of $28,000 and $42,000, respectively, from stock-based activity. During the three months ended March
31, 2017, the Company elected to early adopt ASU 2016-9 and as a result of this adoption, excess tax benefits of $3.3
million related to vested and exercised share-based compensation awards were recorded as a decrease in income tax
expense and a $0.38 increase in our basic earnings per share in the condensed consolidated statement of income. The
Company has elected to continue its policy of estimating forfeitures in accordance with the update.

7. Net Income per Share

The computations of basic and diluted net income per share attributable to HII for the three and six months ended June
30, 2017 and 2016 were as follows ($ in thousands, except share and per share data):

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2017 2016 2017 2016
Basic net income attributable to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. $4,383 $ 1,857 $10,217 $ 2,762
Weighted average shares—basic 11,550,2047,592,972 10,228,5647,578,264
Effect of dilutive securities:
Restricted shares 250,90877,915 251,851 78,475
SARs 541,07019,353 710,826 15,886
Stock options 23,732 42,424 29,446 43,577
Weighted average shares—diluted 12,365,9147,732,664 11,220,6877,716,202
Basic net income per share attributable to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. $0.38 $ 0.24 $1.00 $ 0.36
Diluted net income per share attributable to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. $0.35 $ 0.24 $0.91 $ 0.36

Potential common shares are included in the diluted per share calculation when dilutive. Potential common shares
consist of Class A common stock issuable through unvested restricted stock grants and stock appreciation rights and
are calculated using the treasury stock method.

The following securities were not included in the calculation of diluted net income per share because such inclusion
would be antidilutive (in thousands):

Three
Months
Ended
June 30,

Six
Months
Ended
June 30,

2017 2016 2017 2016
Restricted shares 685 19 804 24
SARs — 10 — 17
Stock options — — — —
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Additionally, potential common stock totaling 3,841,667 shares at June 30, 2017 and 6,841,667 shares at June 30,
2016 issuable under an exchange agreement were not included in diluted shares because such inclusion would be
antidilutive. See Note 5 for further details on the exchange agreement.
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8. Income Taxes

HPIH is taxed as a partnership for income tax purposes; as a result, it is not subject to entity-level federal or state
income taxation but its members are liable for taxes with respect to their allocable shares of each company’s respective
net taxable income. We are subject to U.S. corporate federal, state and local income taxes on our allocable share of net
taxable income that is reflected in our consolidated financial statements.

The effective tax rate for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 was 28.7% and 7.9%, respectively. The
effective tax rate for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 was 11.2% and 12.3%, respectively. For the three
and six months ended June 30, 2017 the provision for income taxes, respectively, was $2.8 million and $1.3 million,
respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 the provision for income taxes, respectively, was
$537,000 and $921,000, respectively. Deferred taxes on our investment in HPIH are measured on the difference
between the carrying amount of our investment in HPIH and the corresponding tax basis of this investment. We do not
measure deferred taxes on differences within HPIH, as those differences inherently comprise our deferred taxes on our
external investment in HPIH.

Due to the ownership structure of HP, which is a taxable entity, it cannot join in a consolidated tax filing with HII.
Consequently, its federal and state tax jurisdictions are separate from those of HII, which prevents deferred tax assets
and liabilities of HII and HP from offsetting one another. The effective tax rate for HII, for the six months ended
June 30, 2017, was mainly impacted by the tax benefit realized by the early adoption of ASU 2016-9. HP’s 2017 book
loss generates a deferred tax benefit which is materially offset by a valuation allowance. As a result, due to the
offsetting effect of HP’s pretax book loss and HII’s pretax book income when the two are combined, the deferred tax
benefit from HP along with the benefit realized by HII’s early adoption of the accounting update results in a total
combined effective tax rate of 7.9%. On a standalone basis, the effective tax rate for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2017 for HII was 26.2% and 7.5%, respectively, while the effective tax rate for the each of the three and six
months ended June 30, 2017 for HP was 3.6%.

We account for uncertainty in income taxes using a two-step process. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for
recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained upon audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step
requires us to estimate and measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely to be realized
upon ultimate settlement. Such amounts are subjective, as a determination must be made on the probability of various
possible outcomes. We reevaluate uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis. This evaluation is based on factors
including, but not limited to, changes in facts or circumstances, changes in tax law, effectively settled issues under
audit, and new audit activity. Such a change in recognition and measurement could result in recognition of a tax
benefit or an additional tax provision.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, we did not have a balance of gross
unrecognized tax benefits, and as such, no amount would favorably affect the effective income tax rate in any future
periods. We believe that there will not be a significant increase or decrease to the uncertain tax positions within 12
months of the reporting date. The Company accounts for interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions
as a component of tax expense, and none were included in the Company’s financial statements as there are not
uncertain tax positions outstanding as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The Company’s 2013 through 2016 tax
years remain subject to examination by tax authorities.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

BimSym Agreements
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On August 1, 2012, the Company entered into a software assignment agreement with BimSym eBusiness Solutions,
Inc. (“BimSym”) for our exclusive ownership of all rights, title and interest in the technology platform (“A.R.I.E.S.
System”) developed by BimSym and utilized by us. As a result of the agreement, we purchased the A.R.I.E.S. System,
our proprietary sales and member administration platforms, for $45,000 and this purchase was capitalized and
recorded as an intangible asset. In connection with this agreement, we simultaneously entered into a master services
agreement for the technology, under which we are required to make monthly payments of $26,000 for five years.
After the five-year term, this agreement automatically renews for one-year terms unless we give 60 days’ notice. As of
June 30, 2017, the Company had not provided notice to BimSym thereby automatically renewing the agreement for an
additional one-year term.

Additionally, on August 1, 2012 we also entered into an exclusivity agreement with BimSym whereby neither
BimSym nor any of its affiliates will create, market or sell a software, system or service with the same or similar
functionality as that of A.R.I.E.S. System under which we are required to make monthly payments of $16,000 for five
years. The present value of these payments was capitalized and recorded as an intangible asset with a corresponding
liability on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.
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Tax Receivable Agreement

On February 13, 2013, we entered into a Tax Receivable Agreement (“TRA”) with HPI and HPIH as the holders of the
HPIH Series B Membership Interests. The TRA requires us to pay to such holders 85% of the cash savings, if any, in
U.S. federal, state and local income tax we realize (or are deemed to realize in the case of an early termination
payment, a change in control or a material breach by us of our obligations under the TRA) as a result of any possible
future increases in tax basis and of certain other tax benefits related to entering into the TRA, including tax benefits
attributable to payments under the TRA itself. This is HII’s obligation and not an obligation of HPIH. HII will benefit
from the remaining 15% of any realized cash savings. For purposes of the TRA, cash savings in income tax is
computed by comparing our actual income tax liability with our hypothetical liability had we not been able to utilize
the tax benefits subject to the TRA itself. The TRA became effective upon completion of the IPO and will remain in
effect until all such tax benefits have been used or expired, unless HII exercises its right to terminate the TRA for an
amount based on the agreed payments remaining to be made under the agreement or HII breaches any of its material
obligations under the TRA in which case all obligations will generally be accelerated and due as if HII had exercised
its right to terminate the agreement. Any potential future payments will be calculated using the market value of our
Class A common stock at the time of the relevant exchange and prevailing tax rates in future years and will be
dependent on us generating sufficient future taxable income to realize the benefit. Payments are generally due under
the TRA within a specified period of time following the filing of our tax return for the taxable year with respect to
which payment of the obligation arises.

Exchanges of Series B Membership Interests, together with an equal number of shares of our Class B common stock,
for shares of our Class A common stock, are expected to increase our tax basis in our share of HPIH’s tangible and
intangible assets. These increases in tax basis are expected to increase our depreciation and amortization deductions
and create other tax benefits and therefore may reduce the amount of tax that we would otherwise be required to pay
in the future. As of June 30, 2017, Series B Membership Interests, together with an equal number of shares of Class B
common stock have been exchanged for a total of 4,825,000 shares of Class A common stock subsequent to the IPO.
See Note 5 for further information on these issuances of Class A common stock. As a result of the exchanges noted
above, we have recorded a liability of $28.6 million pursuant to the TRA as of June 30, 2017. We have determined
that this amount is probable of being paid, because a portion of the deductions and other tax benefits noted above has
been utilized based on our estimated taxable income for 2017 and future periods. This liability represents the share of
tax benefits payable to the entities beneficially owned by Mr. Kosloske, if we generate sufficient taxable income in the
future. As of December 31, 2016, we also reversed the valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets related to the
TRA. The exchange transactions created a tax benefit to be shared by the Company and the entities beneficially
owned by Mr. Kosloske. As of June 30, 2017, we have made $672,000 of cumulative payments under the TRA.

Distributor Advanced Commissions, net

As a course of business, we enter into agreements with our distributors to loan future commission payments based on
actual sales, referred to as advanced commissions on the condensed consolidated balance sheets. Certain of these
agreements may include a loan agreement and a UCC-1 financing statement for the purposes of securing the future
commission payments we make. Generally, these loans will be repaid to us by future commissions earned by the
distributor based on actual sales, as described in the respective agreements. As of June 30, 2017, the Company has
recorded an allowance for bad debt of $261,000.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims, and liabilities that arise in the ordinary course of business. The
Company accrues losses associated with legal claims when such losses are probable and reasonably estimable. If the
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Company determines that a loss is probable and cannot estimate a specific amount for that loss, but can estimate a
range of loss, the best estimate within the range is accrued. If no amount within the range is a better estimate than any
other, the minimum amount of the range is accrued. Estimates are adjusted as additional information becomes
available or circumstances change. Legal defense costs associated with loss contingencies are expensed in the period
incurred.
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State Regulatory Examinations

Indiana Multistate Market Conduct Examination

The Company received notification in April 2016 from the Indiana Department of Insurance that a multistate
examination had been commenced providing for the review of HCC Life Insurance Company’s (“HCC”) short-term
medical plans, Affordable Care Act compliance, marketing, and rate and form filing for all products. In May 2016, the
Company received notice that the Market Actions Working Group of the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners determined that the examination would become a multistate examination. As the Company was a
program manager of HCC products at that time, the notification indicated that the multistate examination will include
a review of the activities of the Company and a review of whether the Company’s practices are in compliance with
Indiana insurance law and the similar laws of other states participating in the examination. The Indiana Department of
Insurance is serving as the managing participant of the multistate examination, and the examination includes, among
other things, a review of whether HCC (and the Company) has engaged in any unfair or deceptive acts or
non-compliant insurance business practices. At present, forty-two states have joined the multistate examination. On
June 1, 2016, the Company responded to an initial document production request in this matter. The Company received
notice on March 16, 2017 that Indiana may expand the scope and time period of the examination to include a review
of the Company’s marketing, sales, and administration of insurance products for all parties with whom HII conducted
business. This notice was provided through an additional “warrant” which is similar to an investigatory subpoena.
Additional discussions with the lead investigators took place on March 29, 2017, in which the Company sought
modifications to the scope of any potential expansion, and offered to provide additional information on a voluntary
basis, but in the meantime, the Company has nevertheless focused on providing the information requested by the
expanded warrant. In addition to the multistate examination led by Indiana, we are aware that several other states,
including Florida and South Dakota are reviewing the sales practices and potential unlicensed sale of insurance by
independently owned and operated licensed-agent call centers utilized by the Company.

The Company is aware of and managing additional claims and inquiries in other states that, except for the inquiries
described below, the Company does not believe are material at this time. Except as otherwise described below, it is
too early to determine whether any of these regulatory examinations will have a material impact on the Company. The
Company is proactively communicating and cooperating with all applicable regulatory agencies, and has provided a
detailed action plan to regulators that summarizes the Company’s enhanced compliance and control mechanisms.

Montana Regulatory Action

The Company also received notification from the Office of the Montana State Auditor, Commissioner of Securities
and Insurance (“CSI”) that an administrative action had been initiated against it. The Company was among more than
two dozen separate parties named by the CSI in a Notice of Proposed Agency Action on May 12, 2016, that alleges
potential violations of the Montana Insurance Code. The Notice, directed to the Company as well as a large pool of
third-party respondents ranging from very large companies to individual insurance agents, indicated that the CSI was
concerned with the possibility of unfair trade practices, potentially unlicensed insurance practices, or agents that were
not properly appointed to the insurance carriers for whom products were being offered. Seventeen of the named
parties, including the Company, requested a hearing before the CSI to contest the state’s allegations and, in addition to
reviewing its own data, the Company has requested certain materials, data, and information from the CSI in order to
do so. Pending the resolution of the matter, the CSI summarily suspended the Company’s license to conduct business
in Montana. The state formally granted the Company’s request to be heard on the issues, and a neutral Hearing Officer,
experienced in the insurance industry, was appointed to hear the matter. The Company has been cooperative with the
CSI, and both parties have exchanged information attendant to the hearing process.
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On March 2, 2017, Montana indicated it was exploring the possibility of consolidating its own investigation with the
Indiana Multistate Market Conduct Examination and conversations with the lead investigators on March 29, 2017
indicate such will occur. The Company expects that the Montana investigation will be consolidated into the
above-described multi-state inquiry, and the Company is awaiting confirmation from the involved parties. While
waiting for that confirmation, the hearing examiner assigned to the matter unexpectedly passed away, and the case has
been temporarily stayed pending the appointment of a new hearing examiner. As a result of the anticipated
consolidation of the CSI action with the multi-state examination, the Company no longer believes that a loss arising
from the CSI action is probable, and the Company has no reasonable basis for estimating the impact, if any, that the
CSI action (as an independent action separate from the multi-state examination) might have on the Company.
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Massachusetts Regulatory Action

The Company also received notification of a civil investigative demand from the Massachusetts Attorney General’s
Office (“MAG”) on June 16, 2016. As part of the MAG’s regulatory oversight of the Massachusetts health care system
and its corresponding authority to request documents from market participants, the MAG has requested certain
information and documents from the Company. The information requested will be used to review the Company’s sales
and marketing practices, and ensure the Company is in compliance with Massachusetts laws and regulations.
Additionally, the Company’s materials and sales and marketing practices will be evaluated in order to ensure that they
are neither deceptive nor do they constitute unfair trade practices.

The Company continues to provide all requested documents and materials requested by the MAG, and is in the
process of assembling some additionally-requested information. The Company continues to cooperate with the MAG
in the interest of bringing the matter to an agreeable conclusion. While the MAG has indicated it is amenable to
exploring all available options, and it is still too early to assess whether the MAG’s investigation will result in a
material impact on the Company, the Company believes that based on the nature of the allegations raised by the MAG
during the fourth quarter of 2016, a loss arising from the future assessment of a civil penalty against the Company is
probable. Notwithstanding, due to the relatively procedural stage of the investigative process, the recent settlement of
another party (a carrier) for the same set of allegations, and the fact that the Company has neither requested nor
received evidentiary material from the MAG, the Company is currently unable to estimate the amount of any potential
civil penalty or determine a range of potential loss. It is possible there may be no financial loss, a nominal or minimal
loss, or some other mutually satisfactory resolution reached with the MAG.

Texas Regulatory Action

In September 2016, the Texas Department of Insurance (“TDI”) notified the Company that it has instituted an
enforcement action to investigate alleged violations of advertising rules and third-party administrator license
requirements in connection with the sale of the Company’s products. In connection with the investigation, the TDI
requested certain information, records, and explanations and the Company delivered a response and the requested
information and records in November 2016. Following such date, the TDI took no action, and communicated only that
it was continuing to review the matter. In May 2017, the TDI communicated a series of additional requests for
information, and the results were provided two weeks later. Since that time, there has been no additional
communication from the TDI. The Company’s position is that there have been no violations of the advertising or
third-party administrator statutes in Texas, although there is no assurance that the TDI will agree with position. This
action has developed slowly, and accordingly the Company has not determined any potential loss to be probable.
Additionally, due to the early stage of the matter any potential loss is not reasonably estimable. Accordingly, no loss
or range of loss has been recorded or disclosed.

We are proactively communicating and cooperating with all regulatory agencies involved in the above-described
examinations and actions and we have recently developed and enhanced our compliance and control mechanisms.
However, it is too early to determine whether any of these regulatory matters will have a material impact on our
business. Any adverse finding could result in significant penalties or other liabilities and/or a requirement to modify
our marketing or business practices and the practices of our third-party distributors, which could harm our business,
results of operations or financial condition. Moreover, an adverse regulatory action in one jurisdiction could result in
penalties and adversely affect our license status or reputation in other jurisdictions due to the requirement that adverse
regulatory actions in one jurisdiction be reported to other jurisdictions.

Miscellaneous

TPA Licensure
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Many states have statutes that require the licensure of third-party insurance administrators (“TPA”). The statutes and
applicable regulations vary from state-to-state with respect to the nature of the business activities that may require
licensure. Where the Company believes that statutes are unclear or open to interpretation, it takes the prudent
approach of applying for a TPA license. Therefore, the Company applied for a TPA license with the Florida Office of
Insurance Regulation ("OIR"). In June 2017, the OIR denied the Company’s application based on its determination that
the Company had not yet provided all information required to process the application. In June 2017, the Company
appealed the denial with the Florida Division of Administrative Hearings. A final hearing on the matters has been
scheduled for October 17-20, 2017, but the Company is working with the OIR to reach a mutually agreeable
resolution of the matter prior to the hearing, including discussing whether the OIR will require the Company to hold
such a license at all.
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Telephone Consumer Protection Act

The Company has received a number of private-party claims relating to alleged violations of the federal Telephone
Consumer Protection Act (TCPA) by its independently owned and operated licensed-agent distributors, alleging that
their marketing activities were potentially unlawful. The Company has been named as a defendant in multiple lawsuits
relating to alleged TCPA matters, including claims styled, but not yet certified, as class actions. The Company is
presently reviewing these matters and reviewing distributor compliance, and enhancing existing compliance. While
these types of claims have previously settled or resolved without any material effect on the Company, there is a
possibility in the future that one or more could have a material effect. The Company requires that its independently
owned and operated licensed-agent distributors reimburse or indemnify it for any such settlements.

Other

The Company has previously received inquiries but no claims, litigation, or findings of violation relating to alleged
data loss and/or privacy breaches relating to affiliated companies. Each allegation is investigated upon receipt and
handled promptly to resolution.

The Company has received claims relating to customer service and claims handling issues arising from a prior carrier
relationship of the Company. Some of these matters have been styled as, but not yet certified, class actions. Recently,
in one of the matters known as the “Azad case,” the Company sought and received dismissal from the matter without
prejudice. The Company has filed its own lawsuit against that same carrier. The Company has received demands for
indemnification from this carrier but no lawsuit has been filed against us from said carrier. The Company has received
claims from insureds relating to lack of carrier coverage, claims handling, and alleged deceptive sales practices
relating to these carriers. In each of these individual insureds’ claims, the Company attempts to dismiss, challenge or
resolve the claims as quickly as possible.

10. Fair Value Measurements

We measure and report financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value is defined as the
exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (referred to as an exit price) in the
principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The fair value of our financial assets and liabilities is determined by
using three levels of input, which are defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The categorization of a financial instrument within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement.

We utilize the market approach to measure the fair value of our financial assets. As subjectivity exists with respect to
many of the valuation techniques, the fair value estimates we have disclosed may not equal prices that we may
ultimately realize if the assets are sold or the liabilities are settled with third parties. Below is a description of our
valuation methods.
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Noncompete obligation. Our noncompete obligation, an exclusivity agreement with the developer of the A.R.I.E.S
System as described in Note 9 is primarily valued using nonbinding market prices as stated in the agreement that are
corroborated by observable market data. The inputs and fair value are reviewed for reasonableness and may be further
validated by comparison to publicly available information or compared to multiple independent valuation sources. The
noncompete obligation is classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities reported in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance
sheets for cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, credit card transactions receivable, accounts receivable, advanced
commissions, carriers and vendors payable, commissions payable, and accounts payable and accrued expenses as of
June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, approximate fair value because of the short-term duration of
these instruments.

20

Edgar Filing: Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. - Form 10-Q

37



As of June 30, 2017, there were no remaining liabilities measured at fair value. As of December 31, 2016, our
liabilities measured at fair value were as follows ($ in thousands):

Carrying
Value

Fair Value
Measurement as
of December 31,
2016

as of
December 31,
2016

Level
1 Level 2 Level

3

Liabilities:
Noncompete obligation $ 110 $ —$ 110 $ —

$ 110 $ —$ 110 $ —

11. Related Party Transactions

Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC

HPI and its subsidiary HPIS, which are beneficially owned by Mr. Kosloske, are related parties by virtue of their
Series B Membership Interests in HPIH, of which we are managing member. During the six months ended June 30,
2017, HPIH paid cash distributions of $4.5 million for these entities related to estimated federal and state income
taxes, pursuant to the operating agreement entered into by HPIH and HPI. Of this, $2.8 million related to amounts
accrued for at December 31, 2016. For the six months ended June 30, 2016, $68,000 in cash distributions were made
for estimated federal and state income taxes. Pursuant to the operating agreement of HPIH, we determine when
distributions will be made to the members of HPIH and the amount of any such distributions, except that HPIH is
required by the operating agreement to make certain pro rata distributions to each member of HPIH quarterly on the
basis of the assumed tax liabilities of the members. As of June 30, 2017, we have no accrued payments due to member
on the condensed consolidated balance sheet. At December 31, 2016 we had accrued $2.8 million for estimated tax
liabilities due to our members.

Tax Receivable Agreement

As discussed in Note 9, on February 13, 2013, we entered into a tax receivable agreement with the holders of the
HPIH Series B Membership Interests, which holders are beneficially owned by Mr. Kosloske.

As of June 30, 2017, we are obligated to pay $28.6 million pursuant to the TRA, of which $521,000 is included in
current liabilities and $28.1 million is included in long-term liabilities on the accompanying condensed consolidated
balance sheets. As of June 30, 2017, we have made cumulative payments under the TRA of $672,000.

Reinsurance

Insurance carriers with which we do business often reinsure a portion of their risk. From time to time, entities owned
or affiliated with Michael Kosloske, serve as reinsurers for insurance carriers that offer products sold by HPIH.

12. Subsequent Events

On July 19, 2017, the Company, through HPIH, entered into a Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) among
HPIH, and certain of its affiliates as guarantors, and SunTrust Bank, as lender (the “Lender”). The Credit Agreement
provides for a $30.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) pursuant to which the Lender has agreed to
make revolving loans and issue letters of credit. The Credit Facility will be used for general corporate purposes,
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including to fund ongoing working capital needs, capital expenditures, and permitted acquisitions. The Credit Facility
also provides HPIH with the right to request additional incremental term loans thereunder up to an aggregate
additional amount of $20 million, subject to the satisfaction of certain additional conditions provided therein.

The Credit Facility matures on July 17, 2020 (the “Termination Date”), and borrowings under the Credit Agreement can
either be, at HPIH’s election: (i) at the Base Rate (which is the highest of the prime rate, the federal funds rate plus
0.50%, the one-month LIBOR index rate plus 1.00%, and zero) plus a spread ranging from 0.75% to 1.25% or (ii) at
Adjusted LIBOR (as defined in the Credit Agreement) plus a spread ranging from 1.75% to 2.25%. The applicable
spread is dependent upon HPIH’s Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Credit Agreement). Interest
accrued on each Base Rate Loan (as defined in the Credit Agreement) is payable in arrears on the last day of each
calendar quarter and on the Termination Date. Interest accrued on each Eurodollar Loan (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) is payable on the last day of the applicable interest period, or every three months, whichever comes
sooner, and on the Termination Date.

21

Edgar Filing: Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. - Form 10-Q

39



The Credit Facility is secured by: (i) a first priority lien on substantially all of the assets (subject to certain excluded
assets) of HPIH and certain of its affiliates (including the Company) and (ii) pledges of equity interests in the
subsidiaries of the Company.

The Credit Agreement contains customary covenants including, but not limited to, (i) a minimum interest coverage
ratio and a maximum Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio and (ii) limitations on incurrence of debt, investments, liens
on assets, certain sale and leaseback transactions, transactions with affiliates, mergers, consolidations and sales of
assets. The Credit Agreement also includes customary events of default, conditions, representations and warranties,
and indemnification provisions.

ITEM 2—MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We have made statements in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
below and in other sections of this report that are forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of
historical fact included in this quarterly report are forward-looking statements. You can identify forward-looking
statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. These statements may include words
such as “may,” “might,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential” or “continue,” the
negative of these terms and other comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements, which are subject to
risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us, may include projections of our future financial performance, our
anticipated growth strategies, anticipated trends in our business and other future events or circumstances. These
statements are only predictions based on our current expectations and projections about future events. There are
important factors that could cause our actual results, level of activity, performance or achievements and other future
events or circumstances to differ materially from the results, level of activity, performance or achievements, events or
circumstances expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements, including those factors discussed in “Part I. –
Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 and those factors
discussed in “Part II – Item 1A. Risk Factors” below. You should specifically consider the numerous risks outlined under
“Part I. – Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 and “Part II –
Item 1A. Risk Factors” below.

We cannot guarantee future results, level of activity, performance, achievements, events or circumstances. We are
under no duty to update any of these forward-looking statements after the date of this report to conform our prior
statements to actual results or revised expectations.

Overview

Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. is a Delaware corporation incorporated on October 26, 2012. In this quarterly
report, unless the context suggests otherwise, references to the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer (1) prior to the February
13, 2013 closing of an initial public offering (“IPO”) of the Class A common stock of Health Insurance Innovations, Inc.
and related transactions, to Health Plan Intermediaries, LLC (“HPI”) and its consolidated subsidiaries and (2) after the
IPO and related transactions, to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. The term “HII”
refers to Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. on a stand-alone basis, and the term “HPIH” refers to Health Plan
Intermediaries Holdings, LLC, a subsidiary of HII and a consolidated subsidiary of the Company, on a stand-alone
basis. The terms “HealthPocket” or “HP” refer to HealthPocket, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary which was acquired by
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HPIH on July 14, 2014.

Our Products

We are a developer, distributor and cloud-based administrator of affordable individual health and family insurance
plans (“IFP”) which include short-term medical (“STM”) insurance plans, and guaranteed-issue and underwritten Health
Benefit Insurance Plans, previously referred to as hospital indemnity plans. We also develop, distribute and administer
supplemental products which include a variety of additional insurance and non-insurance products such as pharmacy
benefit cards, dental plans, vision plans, cancer/critical illness plans, deductible and gap protection plans, and life
insurance policies that are frequently purchased as supplements to IFP. We are not an insurer and do not process or
pay claims. The health insurance products we develop are underwritten by insurance carriers, and we assume no
underwriting, insurance or reimbursement risk.
STM plans feature a streamlined underwriting process offering immediate coverage options. STM plans generally
offer qualifying individuals insurance benefits for fixed short-term durations. Generally, our IFP premiums are
substantially more
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affordable than the premiums of individual major medical (“IMM”) plans which offer lifetime renewable coverage.
Through 2016, STM plans provided up to six months, eleven months, or 364 days of health insurance coverage with a
wide range of deductible and copay levels. On October 31, 2016, the Internal Revenue Service, the Employee Benefits
Security Administration, and the U.S Department of Health and Human Services, collectively “HHS,” published Internal
Revenue Bulletin 2016-47, which provided that, effective January 1, 2017, all STM plans submitted before April 1,
2017 must terminate no later than December 31, 2017, and effective beginning April 1, 2017, new limits are set on
STM duration to periods of less than three months but allowing for re-applications with the same or different health
insurance carrier.
Health Benefit Insurance Plans are insurance products which include both guaranteed-issue and underwritten plans
that pay fixed cash benefits, and additional benefits for certain plans, for covered procedures and services for
individuals under the age of 65. These highly customizable products are on an open provider network without
copayments or deductibles and do not have defined policy term lengths.

We design and structure these IFPs and supplemental products on behalf of insurance carriers and discount benefit
providers. We market products to individuals through our internal distribution network and we use an external
distribution network consisting of independently owned and operated licensed-agent call centers to market to
individuals. For both our internal distribution network and our external distribution network, we administer the IFPs
and supplemental products. We manage customer relations via our online member portal, which is available 24 hours
a day, seven days a week. Our online enrollment process allows us to aggregate and analyze consumer data and
purchasing habits to track market trends and drive product innovation.

Our scalable, proprietary, and web-based technology platform provides customers, whom we refer to as members,
immediate access to the products we sell through our internal and third-party distribution channels. Members can
tailor product selections to meet their personal insurance and budget needs, buy policies and print policy documents
and identification cards in real-time. Our technology platform uses abbreviated online applications, some with health
questionnaires, to provide an immediate accept or reject decision for the products we offer. Once an application is
accepted, individuals can use our automated payment system to complete the enrollment process and obtain instant
electronic access to their policy fulfillment documents, including the insurance policy, benefits schedule and
identification cards. We receive credit card and Automated Clearing House (“ACH”) payments directly from members
at the time of sale. We believe that our technology platform provides scalability as we add members and on a
per-policy-basis, reduces the average costs associated with marketing, selling, underwriting and administering
policies.

Our sales of IFP and supplemental products focus on the large and under-penetrated segment of the U.S. population
who are uninsured or underinsured. These respective classes include individuals not covered by employer-sponsored
insurance plans, such as the self-employed, small business owners and their employees, individuals who are unable to
afford the rising cost of IMM premiums, underserved “gap populations” that require insurance due to changes caused by
life events: new graduates, divorcees, early retirees, military discharges, the unemployed, part-time and seasonal
employees and customers seeking health insurance between the open enrollment periods created under the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act (“PPACA”).

As the managing general underwriter of our IFP and supplemental products, we receive all amounts due in connection
with the plans we administer on behalf of the service providers. We refer to these total collections as premium
equivalents, which typically represent a combination of premiums, fees for discount benefit plans, enrollment fees,
and direct commission payments. From premium equivalents, we remit risk premium to carriers and amounts earned
by discount benefit plan providers, who we refer to as third-party obligors, such carriers and third-party obligors being
the ultimate parties responsible for providing the insurance coverage or discount benefits to the member. Our revenues
consist of the balance of the premium equivalents.
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We collect premium equivalents upon the initial sale of the plan and then monthly upon each subsequent periodic
payment under such plan. We receive most premium equivalents through online credit card or ACH processing. As a
result, we have limited accounts receivable. We remit the risk premium to the applicable carriers and the amounts
earned by third-party obligors on a monthly basis based on the respective compensation arrangements.

We also provide consumers with access to health insurance information search and comparison technology through
our website, HealthPocket.com. This website allows consumers to easily and clearly compare and rank health
insurance plans available for an individual, family, or small business, empowering consumers to make health plan
decisions and reduce their out of pocket costs. In addition, the data aggregated by HealthPocket (“HP”) is used to
research consumer needs and to measure product demand to help us design and manufacture high-demand insurance
products. HP’s revenue is principally derived from referral fees and marketing fees. We include these revenues within
our premium equivalent metric.
In 2015, we launched a direct-to-consumer insurance website that allows consumers to research health insurance
trends, comparison shop, and purchase IFP under the AgileHealthInsurance® brand. AgileHealthInsurance.com
(“Agile”) is one of the few internet sites dedicated to helping consumers understand the benefits of Term Health
Insurance. We use the term “Term Health
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Insurance” to refer to fixed term health insurance products of less than one year in duration, such as STM. These IFP
plans are the culmination of extensive research on health insurance needs in the PPACA era, and we believe
consumers will easily be able to find affordable prices for these plans on AgileHealthInsurance.com.
AgileHealthInsurance.com utilizes what we believe is a best-of-class plan comparison and online enrollment tool, to
accompany these new plans. The underlying technology was developed by engineers with decades of experience
working on top-tier e-Commerce websites known for their ease-of-use.

As of June 30, 2017, we had 359,460 total plans in force, compared with 258,425 on June 30, 2016, representing an
increase of 39.1%. For the three months ended June 30, 2017, our premium equivalents and revenues were $98.9
million and $61.8 million, respectively, representing increases of 28.5% and 38.9%, respectively, when compared to
the three months ended June 30, 2016. For the six months ended June 30, 2017, our premium equivalents and
revenues were $189.8 million and $117.7 million, respectively, representing increases of 28.5% and 35.3%,
respectively when compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016. For more detail about the use of premium
equivalents as a business metric and a reconciliation of premium equivalents to revenues, see “Key Business
Metrics—Premium Equivalents” below.

Key Business Metrics

In addition to traditional financial metrics, we rely upon the following key business metrics to evaluate our business
performance and facilitate long-term strategic planning:

Premium equivalents. We define this metric as our total collections, including the combination of premiums, fees for
discount benefit plans, enrollment fees, and direct commission payments. All amounts not paid out as risk premium to
carriers or paid out to other third-party obligors are considered to be revenues for financial reporting purposes. We
have included premium equivalents in this report because it is a key measure used by our management to understand
and evaluate our core operating performance and trends, to prepare and approve our annual budget and to develop
short- and long-term operational plans. In particular, the inclusion of premium equivalents can provide a useful
measure for period-to-period comparisons of our business. This financial measurement is considered a non-GAAP
financial measure and is not recognized under generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America (“GAAP”) and should not be used as, and is not an alternative to, revenues as a measure of our operating
performance.

The following table presents a reconciliation of premium equivalents to revenues for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2017 and 2016 ($ in thousands):

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2017 2016 2017 2016
Premium equivalents $98,896 $76,977 $189,836 $147,717
Less risk premium 35,502 30,942 69,043 57,824
Less amounts earned by third party obligors 1,611 1,541 3,142 2,909
Revenues $61,783 $44,494 $117,651 $86,984

Plans in force. We consider a plan to be in force when we have issued a member his or her insurance policy or
discount benefit plan and have collected the applicable premium payments, commissions, and/or discount benefit fees.
Our plans in force are an important indicator of our expected revenues. A member may be enrolled in more than one
policy or discount benefit plan simultaneously. A plan becomes inactive upon notification to us of termination of the
policy or discount benefit plan, when the member’s policy or discount benefit plan expires or following non-payment
of premiums or discount benefit fees when due.
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The following table presents the number of plans in force by product type as of June 30, 2017 and 2016:
As of June 30,
2017 2016 Change

IFP 185,875 120,944 53.7 %
Supplemental products 173,585 137,481 26.3 %
Total 359,460 258,425 39.1 %

EBITDA. We define this metric as net income (loss) before interest expense, income taxes and depreciation and
amortization. We have included EBITDA in this report because it is a key measure used by our management and
board of directors to understand and evaluate our core operating performance and trends, to prepare and approve our
annual budget and to develop short- and long-term operational plans. In particular, the exclusion of certain expenses in
calculating EBITDA can provide a useful measure for
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period-to-period comparisons of our business. However, EBITDA does not represent, and should not be considered as,
an alternative to net income or cash flows from operations, each as determined in accordance with GAAP. Other
companies may calculate EBITDA differently than we do. EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and you
should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP.

Adjusted EBITDA. To calculate adjusted EBITDA, we calculate EBITDA, which is then further adjusted for items
that are not part of regular operating activities, including transaction costs, tax receivable agreement liability
adjustment, severance, restructuring costs, and other non-cash items such as non-cash stock-based compensation.
Adjusted EBITDA does not represent, and should not be considered as, an alternative to net income or cash flows
from operations, each as determined in accordance with GAAP. We have presented adjusted EBITDA because we
consider it an important supplemental measure of our performance and believe that it is frequently used by analysts,
investors and other interested parties in the evaluation of companies. Other companies may calculate adjusted
EBITDA differently than we do. Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider
it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP.

The following table presents a reconciliation of net income to EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 ($ in thousands):

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months
Ended June 30,

2017 2016 2017 2016
Net income $6,952 $4,270 $15,474 $6,556
Interest expense 1 100 — 155
Depreciation and amortization 992 797 1,930 1,532
Provision for income taxes 2,800 537 1,331 921
EBITDA 10,745 5,704 18,735 9,164
Non-cash stock-based compensation 964 482 1,784 969
Fair value adjustment to contingent consideration — 15 — 15
Transaction costs 450 — 756 —
Tax receivable agreement liability adjustment — 244 — 429
Severance, restructuring and other charges 363 103 896 222
Adjusted EBITDA $12,522 $6,548 $22,171 $10,799

Adjusted net income. To calculate adjusted net income, we calculate net income then add back amortization (but not
depreciation), interest, tax expense and other items that are not part of regular operating activities, including
transaction costs, tax receivable agreement liability adjustment, severance, restructuring costs, and other non-cash
items such as non-cash stock-based compensation. From adjusted pre-tax net income we apply a pro forma tax
expense calculated at an assumed rate of 38%. We believe that when measuring Company and executive performance
against the adjusted net income measure, applying a pro forma tax rate better reflects the performance of the Company
without regard to the Company’s organizational tax structure. We have included adjusted net income in this report
because it is a key performance measure used by our management to understand and evaluate our core operating
performance and trends and because we believe it is frequently used by analysts, investors and other interested parties
in their evaluation of our Company. Other companies may calculate this measure differently than we do. Adjusted net
income has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or substitution for earnings per
share as reported under GAAP.

Adjusted net income per share. Adjusted net income per share is computed by dividing adjusted net income by the
total number of weighted-average diluted Class A and weighted-average Class B shares of our common stock for each
period. We have included adjusted net income per share in this report because it is a key measure used by our
management to understand and evaluate our core operating performance and trends and because we believe it is
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frequently used by analysts, investors and other interested parties in the evaluation of companies. Other companies
may calculate this measure differently than we do. Adjusted net income per share has limitations as an analytical tool,
and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for earnings per share as reported under GAAP.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of net income to adjusted net income and adjusted net income per share
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands, except per share data):

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2017 2016 2017 2016
Net income $6,952 $4,270 $15,474 $6,556
Interest expense 1 100 — 155
Amortization 512 557 1,023 1,115
Provision for income taxes 2,800 537 1,331 921
Non-cash stock-based compensation 964 482 1,784 969
Fair value adjustment to contingent consideration — 15 — 15
Transaction costs 450 — 756 —
Tax receivable agreement liability adjustment — 244 — 429
Severance, restructuring and other charges 363 103 896 222
Adjusted pre-tax income 12,042 6,308 21,264 10,382
Pro forma income taxes (4,576 ) (2,397 ) (8,080 ) (3,945 )
Adjusted net income $7,466 $3,911 $13,184 $6,437
Total weighted average diluted share count 16,208 14,575 16,156 14,558
Adjusted net income per share $0.46 $0.27 $0.82 $0.44

Core S, G & A. We define this metric as total GAAP S, G & A adjusted for stock-based compensation, transaction
costs, severance, restructuring and other costs, and marketing leads and advertising expense. We have included Core
S, G & A in this report because it is a key measure used by our management to understand and evaluate our core
operating performance and trends. Other companies may calculate this measure differently than we do. Core S, G & A
has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for S, G & A as
reported under GAAP.

The following table presents a reconciliation of S, G & A to Core S, G & A for the three and six months ended June
30, 2017 and 2016 ($ in thousands):

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months
Ended June 30,

2017 2016 2017 2016
Total S, G & A $14,697 $11,697 $29,954 $23,667
Less Stock-based compensation 964 482 1,784 969
Less Transaction costs 450 — 756 —
Less Severance, restructuring and other charges 363 103 896 222
Less Marketing and Advertising 1,800 2,449 5,587 5,269
Core S, G & A $11,120 $8,663 $20,931 $17,207

Results of Operations

Comparison of Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Revenues

Our revenues primarily consist of commissions and fees earned for health insurance policies and supplemental
products issued to members, referral fees, and fees for discount benefit plans paid by members as a direct result of our
enrollment services, brokerage services or referral sales. Revenues reported by the Company are net of premiums
remitted to insurance carriers and fees paid for discount benefit plans.
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Commission rates for our products are agreed to in advance with the relevant insurance carrier and vary by carrier and
policy type. Under our carrier compensation arrangements, the commission rate schedule that is in effect on the policy
effective date governs the commissions over the life of the policy. All amounts due to insurance carriers and discount
benefit vendors are reported and paid to them according to the procedures provided for in the contractual agreements
between the individual carrier or vendor and us.
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We continue to receive a commission payment until the plan expires or is terminated. Accordingly, a significant
portion of our monthly revenues is predictable on a month-to-month basis and revenues increase in direct proportion
to the growth we experience in the number of plans in force.

Revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2017 were $61.8 million, an increase of $17.3 million, or 38.9%,
compared to the same period in 2016. Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2017 were $117.7 million, an
increase of $30.7 million, or 35.3%, compared to the same period in 2016. The increases were primarily due to the
increase in the number of policies in force. Policies in force increased 39.1% to 359,460 at June 30, 2017 from
258,425 at June 30, 2016. The increase in policies in force was due primarily to continued consumer demand for our
affordable healthcare products and the diversification and enhancement of our distribution system, including our
e-Commerce website, AgileHealthInsurance.com.

Third-party Commissions

Our third-party commissions consist of fees and commissions paid to third-party distributors for selling our products
to members, which we pay monthly for existing members and on a weekly basis for new members.

Third-party commissions for the three months ended June 30, 2017 were $35.1 million, an increase of $9.2 million, or
35.8%, compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016. Third-party commissions for the six months ended June
30, 2017 were $66.5 million, an increase of $14.7 million, or 28.3%, compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016.
The increases in third-party commissions were primarily due to an increase in the number of policies in force sold
through non-owned distributors.

Third-party commissions represented 56.8% and 35.5% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for the
three months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to 58.1% and 33.6% of revenues and premium equivalents,
respectively, for the three months ended June 30, 2016. Third-party commissions represented 56.6% and 35.1% of
revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to 59.6% and
35.1% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for the six months ended June 30, 2016. 

Credit Card and ACH Fees

Our credit card and ACH fees are fees paid to our banks and processors for the collection of credit card and ACH
payments. We expect credit card and ACH fees as a percentage of revenue to remain generally consistent with prior
periods.

Credit card and ACH fees for the three months ended June 30, 2017 were $1.2 million, an increase of $258,000, or
26.5%, compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016. Credit card and ACH fees for the six months ended June
30, 2017 were $2.4 million, an increase of $558,000, or 30.0%, compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016. The
increase in credit card and ACH fees is in line with the year-over-year increase in premium equivalents of 28.5%.

Credit card and ACH fees represented 2.0% and 1.2% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for three
months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to 2.2% and 1.3% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively for
the three months ended June 30, 2016. Credit card and ACH fees represented 2.1% and 1.3% of revenues and
premium equivalents, respectively, for both the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. These
percentages are consistent with our expectations.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense
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Our selling, general and administrative (“S, G & A”) expenses primarily consist of personnel costs, which include
salaries, bonuses, commissions, stock-based compensation, payroll taxes and benefits. S, G & A expenses also include
selling and marketing expenses and travel costs associated with obtaining new distributor relationships. In addition,
these expenses also include expenses for outside professional services and technology expenses, including legal, audit
and financial services and the maintenance of our administrative technology platform and marketing costs for online
advertising.

S, G & A expense for the three months ended June 30, 2017 was $15 million. This represents an increase of $3.0
million, or 25.6% compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016. S, G & A expense for the six months ended
June 30, 2017 was $30.0 million. This represents an increase of $6.3 million, or 26.6% for the six months ended June
30, 2017 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2016. The increase in S, G &A for both the three months ended
June 30, 2017, was primarily attributable to increased compensation expense, including stock based compensation and
severance, and higher professional fees.

S, G & A expense represented 23.8% and 14.9% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for the three
months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to 26.3% and 15.2% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively, for
three months ended
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June 30, 2016. S, G & A expense represented 25.5% and 15.8% of revenues and premium equivalents, respectively,
for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as compared to 27.2% and 16.0% of revenues and premium equivalents,
respectively, for the six months ended June 30, 2016.

The decrease in S, G & A expenses, as a percentage of revenues, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017
compared to the same period 2016 was primarily attributable to revenue from growth in policies-in-force increasing at
a higher rate than the increases in advertising and marketing expenses, professional fees, and compensation, including
stock based compensation and severance.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense is primarily related to the amortization of acquired intangible assets as well as
depreciation of property and equipment used in our business.

Depreciation and amortization expense for the three months ended June 30, 2017 was $1.0 million, an increase of
$195,000, or 24.5%, compared to the three months ended June 30, 2016. Depreciation and amortization expense for
the six months ended June 30, 2017 was $1.9 million, an increase of $398,000, or 26.0%, compared to the six months
ended June 30, 2016. The increase in depreciation and amortization was primarily driven by the increase in
depreciation expense of additional gross capitalized internal-use software.

Tax Receivable Agreement Expense

There was no recorded TRA expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017. For the three and six months
ended 2016, TRA expense was $244,000 and $429,000, respectively. See Note 9 of the accompanying condensed
consolidated financial statements for further information on the TRA agreement with the holders of HPIH Series B
Membership Interests.

Provision for Income Taxes

For the three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, we recorded a provision for income taxes of $2.8 million and
$537,000, reflecting an effective tax rate of 28.7% and 11.2%, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2017
and 2016, we recorded a provision for income taxes of $1.3 million and $921,000, respectively, reflecting an effective
tax rate of 7.9% and 12.3%, respectively. The effective tax rate for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 was
favorably impacted by the adoption of ASU 2016-09 in the first quarter of 2017 which resulted in excess tax benefits
of $3.3 million related to vested and exercised share-based compensation awards which were recorded as a decrease in
income tax expense. See Note 10 of the accompanying condensed financial statements for further information on
income taxes and the effective tax rates.

Noncontrolling Interest

We are the sole managing member of HPIH and have 100% of the voting rights and control. As of June 30, 2017, we
had a 76.4% economic interest in HPIH, and HPI and HPIS had a 23.6% economic interest in HPIH. HPI and HPIS’s
interest in HPIH is reflected as a noncontrolling interest on our accompanying condensed consolidated financial
statements.

Net income and loss attributable to HII for the respective three months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 included HII’s
share of its consolidated entities’ net income and loss.
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On March 13, 2017, HPI and HPIS (the “Selling Stockholders”) completed a secondary underwritten public offering of
3,000,000 shares of our Class A common stock under the above-described Form S-3 registration statement. In
connection with the offering, on March 8, 2017, we entered into an underwriting agreement with Canaccord Genuity
Inc., Cantor Fitzgerald & Co., Northland Securities, Inc., and Lake Street Capital Markets, LLC, collectively as the
underwriters, and the Selling Stockholders. Immediately prior to the completion of the offering, we issued 3,000,000
shares of Class A common stock to the Selling Stockholders. In exchange for the issuance of the shares, we
immediately acquired 3,000,000 Series B Membership Interests, together with an equal number of shares of our Class
B common stock from the Selling Stockholders. These Series B Membership Interests were immediately recapitalized
into Series A Membership Interests in HPIH. The Selling Stockholders agreed to immediately after the exchange sell
to the underwriter for resale all 3,000,000 shares of Class A common stock at a public offering price of $14.00 per
share ($13.16 per share, net of underwriting discounts), for net proceeds of $39.5 million. No shares were sold by the
Company in this offering. The acquisition of the Series B Membership Interests resulted in a decrease in
noncontrolling interests with an offsetting increase in stockholders’ equity as of March 31, 2017 to reflect the decrease
in the noncontrolling interest’s investment in HPIH. See Note 5 of the accompanying condensed consolidated financial
statements for further discussion of these transactions and the Exchange Agreement.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

As of June 30, 2017, we had $27.5 million of cash and cash equivalents.

We believe that our available cash and cash flows expected to be generated from operations will be adequate to satisfy
our current and planned operations for at least the next 12 months, although we can give no assurances concerning
future liquidity.

Our Indebtedness

On July 17, 2017, the Company, through HPIH, entered into a Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) among
HPIH, and certain of its affiliates as guarantors, and SunTrust Bank, as lender (the “Lender”). The Credit Agreement
provides for a $30.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) pursuant to which the Lender has agreed to
make revolving loans and issue letters of credit. The Credit Facility will be used for general corporate purposes,
including to fund ongoing working capital needs, capital expenditures, and permitted acquisitions. The Credit Facility
also provides HPIH with the right to request additional incremental term loans thereunder up to an aggregate
additional amount of $20 million, subject to the satisfaction of certain additional conditions provided therein.

The Credit Facility matures on July 17, 2020 (the “Termination Date”), and borrowings under the Credit Agreement can
either be, at HPIH’s election: (i) at the Base Rate (which is the highest of the prime rate, the federal funds rate plus
0.50%, the one-month LIBOR index rate plus 1.00%, and zero) plus a spread ranging from 0.75% to 1.25% or (ii) at
Adjusted LIBOR (as defined in the Credit Agreement) plus a spread ranging from 1.75% to 2.25%. The applicable
spread is dependent upon HPIH’s Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Credit Agreement). Interest
accrued on each Base Rate Loan (as defined in the Credit Agreement) is payable in arrears on the last day of each
calendar quarter and on the Termination Date. Interest accrued on each Eurodollar Loan (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) is payable on the last day of the applicable interest period, or every three months, whichever comes
sooner, and on the Termination Date.

The Credit Facility is secured by: (i) a first priority lien on substantially all of the assets (subject to certain excluded
assets) of HPIH and certain of its affiliates (including the Company) and (ii) pledges of equity interests in the
subsidiaries of the Company.

The Credit Agreement contains customary covenants including, but not limited to, (i) a minimum interest coverage
ratio and a maximum Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio and (ii) limitations on incurrence of debt, investments, liens
on assets, certain sale and leaseback transactions, transactions with affiliates, mergers, consolidations and sales of
assets. The Credit Agreement also includes customary events of default, conditions, representations and warranties,
and indemnification provisions.

Concurrent with the execution of the above Credit Agreement, the Company terminated its existing line of credit
established on December 15, 2014. At June 30, 2017, we had no outstanding balance from draws on the line of credit
and $15.0 million was available to be drawn upon.

Cash Flows

The following summary of cash flows for the periods indicated has been derived from our financial statements
included elsewhere in this report.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2017 was primarily the result of net income of
$15.5 million, and adjustments to reconcile net income to cash of: $1.9 million in depreciation and amortization, $1.8
million in stock-based compensation and a $762,000 decrease in deferred tax assets. Further, there was an increase of
$297,000 in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities, which was partially offset by an increase in
restricted cash of $2.2 million and a $3.4 million change in income taxes. Decreases in advanced commissions were
$6.3 million which were driven by the outsourcing of advancing commissions to a third-party carrier. Cash used in
operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was primarily the result of an $8.3 million increase in
advanced commissions and an increase in restricted cash of $7.8 million. These uses of cash were partially offset by a
$3.4 million increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities.

29

Edgar Filing: Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. - Form 10-Q

55



Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Our primary investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2017 were attributable to capitalized internal-use
software and website development costs of $1.4 million. Our primary investing activities for the six months ended
June 30, 2016 were attributable to capitalized internal-use software and website development costs of $1.6 million.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

During the six months ended June 30, 2017, cash used by financing activities of $4.8 million was primarily driven by
the distributions to member of $4.5 million and $185,000 for payments associated with the tax liabilities associated
with restricted share vesting. During the six months ended June 30, 2016, cash provided by financing activities of $5.8
million was primarily driven by the proceeds of $7.5 million from borrowing under the revolving line of credit,
partially offset by payments on the same line of credit of $1.0 million, and payments of $532,000 of contingent
acquisition consideration.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Through June 30, 2017, we had not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements, other than the operating leases
discussed in Note 15 of our December 31, 2016 audited consolidated financial statements included in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements
requires management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the applicable periods. We base our estimates, assumptions and judgments
on historical experience and on various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Different assumptions and judgments could change the estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements,
which, in turn, could change the results from those reported. We evaluate our estimates, assumptions and judgments
on an ongoing basis.

The critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments that we believe have the most significant impact on our
financial statements are described in Note 1 to the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements, the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part II, Item 8 of Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2016, and Part I, Item 7 of Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2016 under the heading “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.” There have been no material
changes to the Company’s critical accounting policies and estimates since the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Note 1 to the condensed consolidated financial statements contains a discussion of recently issued accounting
pronouncements and their impact or potential future impact on the Company’s financial results, if determinable, under
the sub-heading “Recent Accounting Pronouncements.”

Carrier Concentration
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For the six months ended June 30, 2017, three carriers accounted for 53.9% of our premium equivalents and for the
year ended December 31, 2016, three carriers accounted for 60% of our premium equivalents. For the six months
ended June 30, 2017, CHUBB accounted for 20.6%, Everest Reinsurance Company accounted for 19.3% of our
premium equivalents, and Companion Life Insurance Company accounted for 14.0%. The Company anticipates that
its premium equivalents in 2017 will continue to be concentrated among a small number of carriers, although as a part
of the Company’s strategy of improving and increasing its product mix by seeking to add innovative new products, the
Company anticipates that its carrier concentration may decrease.

30

Edgar Filing: Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. - Form 10-Q

57



Legal and Other Contingencies

The Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims, and liabilities that arise in the ordinary course of business.
Regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on us because of defense and settlement costs,
diversion of management resources and other factors. The Company accrues losses associated with legal claims when
such losses are probable and reasonably estimable. If the Company determines that a loss is probable and cannot
estimate a specific amount for that loss, but can estimate a range of loss, the best estimate within the range is accrued.
If no amount within the range is a better estimate than any other, the minimum amount of the range is accrued.
Estimates are adjusted as additional information becomes available or circumstances change. Legal defense costs
associated with loss contingencies are expensed in the period incurred.

ITEM 3—QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

This item is not applicable for smaller reporting companies.

ITEM 4—CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and our Chief
Financial Officer (principal financial officer), evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as
of June 30, 2017. The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required
to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their
objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible
controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2017, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended June 30,
2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1—LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are currently a party to multiple litigation proceedings. From time to time, we may be a party to litigation and
subject to claims incident to the ordinary course of business, including claims from consumers alleging
misrepresentation and material omissions in connection with their purchase of our products. Except as described
below, we do not believe that any pending legal proceedings are material. Regardless of the outcome, litigation can
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have an adverse impact on us because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of management resources and other
factors.

State Regulatory Examinations

From time to time the Company receives information and document requests from state insurance regulators
concerning the business practices of the Company and/or third-party distributors of the Company’s products. Except as
otherwise described below, it is too early to determine whether any of these regulatory examinations will have a
material impact on the Company. The Company’s policy is to proactively communicate and cooperate with all such
requests.

Indiana Multistate Market Conduct Examination

The Company received notification in April 2016 from the Indiana Department of Insurance that a multistate
examination had been commenced providing for the review of HCC Life Insurance Company’s (“HCC”) short-term
medical plans, Affordable Care Act compliance, marketing, and rate and form filing for all products. In May 2016, the
Company received notice that the
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Market Actions Working Group of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners determined that the
examination would become a multistate examination. As the Company was a program manager of HCC products at
that time, the notification indicated that the multistate examination will include a review of the activities of the
Company and a review of whether the Company’s practices are in compliance with Indiana insurance law and the
similar laws of other states participating in the examination. The Indiana Department of Insurance is serving as the
managing participant of the multistate examination, and the examination includes, among other things, a review of
whether HCC (and the Company) has engaged in any unfair or deceptive acts or non-compliant insurance business
practices. At present, forty-two states have joined the multistate examination. On June 1, 2016, the Company
responded to an initial document production request in this matter. The Company received notice on March 16, 2017
that Indiana may expand the scope and time period of the examination to include a review of the Company’s
marketing, sales, and administration of insurance products for all parties with whom HII conducted business. This
notice was provided through an additional “warrant” which is similar to an investigatory subpoena. Additional
discussions with the lead investigators took place on March 29, 2017, in which the Company sought modifications to
the scope of any potential expansion, and offered to provide additional information on a voluntary basis, but in the
meantime, the Company has nevertheless focused on providing the information requested by the expanded warrant. In
addition to the multistate examination led by Indiana, we are aware that several other states, including Florida and
South Dakota are reviewing the sales practices and potential unlicensed sale of insurance by independently owned and
operated licensed-agent call centers utilized by the Company.

The Company is aware of and managing additional claims and inquiries in other states that, except for the inquiries
described below, the Company does not believe are material at this time. Except as otherwise described below, it is
too early to determine whether any of these regulatory examinations will have a material impact on the Company. The
Company is proactively communicating and cooperating with all applicable regulatory agencies, and has provided a
detailed action plan to regulators that summarizes the Company’s enhanced compliance and control mechanisms.

Montana Regulatory Action

The Company also received notification from the Office of the Montana State Auditor, Commissioner of Securities
and Insurance (“CSI”) that an administrative action had been initiated against it. The Company was among more than
two dozen separate parties named by the CSI in a Notice of Proposed Agency Action on May 12, 2016, that alleges
potential violations of the Montana Insurance Code. The Notice, directed to the Company as well as a large pool of
third-party respondents ranging from very large companies to individual insurance agents, indicated that the CSI was
concerned with the possibility of unfair trade practices, potentially unlicensed insurance practices, or agents that were
not properly appointed to the insurance carriers for whom products were being offered. Seventeen of the named
parties, including the Company, requested a hearing before the CSI to contest the state’s allegations and, in addition to
reviewing its own data, the Company has requested certain materials, data, and information from the CSI in order to
do so. Pending the resolution of the matter, the CSI summarily suspended the Company’s license to conduct business
in Montana. The state formally granted the Company’s request to be heard on the issues, and a neutral Hearing Officer,
experienced in the insurance industry, was appointed to hear the matter. The Company has been cooperative with the
CSI, and both parties have exchanged information attendant to the hearing process.

On March 2, 2017, Montana indicated it was exploring the possibility of consolidating its own investigation with the
Indiana Multistate Market Conduct Examination and conversations with the lead investigators on March 29, 2017
indicate such will occur. The Company expects that the Montana investigation will be consolidated into the
above-described multi-state inquiry, and the Company is awaiting confirmation from the involved parties. While
waiting for that confirmation, the hearing examiner assigned to the matter unexpectedly passed away, and the case has
been temporarily stayed pending the appointment of a new hearing examiner. As a result of the anticipated
consolidation of the CSI action with the multi-state examination, the Company no longer believes that a loss arising
from the CSI action is probable, and the Company has no reasonable basis for estimating the impact, if any, that the
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CSI action (as an independent action separate from the multi-state examination) might have on the Company.

Massachusetts Regulatory Action

The Company also received notification of a civil investigative demand from the Massachusetts Attorney General’s
Office (“MAG”) on June 16, 2016. As part of the MAG’s regulatory oversight of the Massachusetts health care system
and its corresponding authority to request documents from market participants, the MAG has requested certain
information and documents from the Company. The information requested will be used to review the Company’s sales
and marketing practices, and ensure the Company is in compliance with Massachusetts laws and regulations.
Additionally, the Company’s materials and sales and marketing practices will be evaluated in order to ensure that they
are neither deceptive nor do they constitute unfair trade practices.

The Company continues to provide all requested documents and materials requested by the MAG, and is in the
process of assembling some additionally-requested information. The Company continues to cooperate with the MAG
in the interest of bringing the matter to an agreeable conclusion. While the MAG has indicated it is amenable to
exploring all available options, and it is still

32

Edgar Filing: Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. - Form 10-Q

61



too early to assess whether the MAG’s investigation will result in a material impact on the Company, the Company
believes that based on the nature of the allegations raised by the MAG during the fourth quarter of 2016, a loss arising
from the future assessment of a civil penalty against the Company is probable. Notwithstanding, due to the relatively
procedural stage of the investigative process, the recent settlement of another party (a carrier) for the same set of
allegations, and the fact that the Company has neither requested nor received evidentiary material from the MAG, the
Company is currently unable to estimate the amount of any potential civil penalty or determine a range of potential
loss. It is possible there may be no financial loss, a nominal or minimal loss, or some other mutually satisfactory
resolution reached with the MAG.

Texas Regulatory Action

In September 2016, the Texas Department of Insurance (“TDI”) notified the Company that it has instituted an
enforcement action to investigate alleged violations of advertising rules and third-party administrator license
requirements in connection with the sale of the Company’s products. In connection with the investigation, the TDI
requested certain information, records, and explanations and the Company delivered a response and the requested
information and records in November 2016. Following such date, the TDI took no action, and communicated only that
it was continuing to review the matter. In May 2017, the TDI communicated a series of additional requests for
information, and the results were provided two weeks later. Since that time, there has been no additional
communication from the TDI. The Company’s position is that there have been no violations of the advertising or
third-party administrator statutes in Texas, although there is no assurance that the TDI will agree with position. This
action has developed slowly, and accordingly the Company has not determined any potential loss to be probable.
Additionally, due to the early stage of the matter any potential loss is not reasonably estimable. Accordingly, no loss
or range of loss has been recorded or disclosed.

Miscellaneous

TPA Licensure

Many states have statutes that require the licensure of third-party insurance administrators (“TPA”). The statutes and
applicable regulations vary from state-to-state with respect to the nature of the business activities that may require
licensure. Where the Company believes that statutes are unclear or open to interpretation, it takes the prudent
approach of applying for a TPA license. Therefore, the Company applied for a TPA license with the Florida Office of
Insurance Regulation ("OIR"). In June 2017, the OIR denied the Company’s application based on its determination that
the Company had not yet provided all information required to process the application. In June 2017, the Company
appealed the denial with the Florida Division of Administrative Hearings. A final hearing on the matters has been
scheduled for October 17-20, 2017, but the Company is working with the OIR to reach a mutually agreeable
resolution of the matter prior to the hearing, including discussing whether the OIR will require the Company to hold
such a license at all.

Telephone Consumer Protection Act

The Company has received a number of private-party claims relating to alleged violations of the federal Telephone
Consumer Protection Act (TCPA) by its independently owned and operated licensed-agent distributors, alleging that
their marketing activities were potentially unlawful. The Company has been named as a defendant in multiple lawsuits
relating to alleged TCPA matters, including claims styled, but not yet certified, as class actions. The Company is
presently reviewing these matters and reviewing distributor compliance, and enhancing existing compliance. While
these types of claims have previously settled or resolved without any material effect on the Company, there is a
possibility in the future that one or more could have a material effect. The Company requires that its independently
owned and operated licensed-agent distributors reimburse or indemnify it for any such settlements.
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Other

The Company has previously received inquiries but no claims, litigation, or findings of violation relating to alleged
data loss and/or privacy breaches relating to affiliated companies. Each allegation is investigated upon receipt and
handled promptly to resolution.

The Company has received claims relating to customer service and claims handling issues arising from a prior carrier
relationship of the Company. Some of these matters have been styled as, but not yet certified, class actions. Recently,
in one of the matters known as the “Azad case,” the Company sought and received dismissal from the matter without
prejudice. The Company has filed its own lawsuit against that same carrier. The Company has received demands for
indemnification from this carrier but no lawsuit has been filed against us from said carrier. The Company has received
claims from insureds relating to lack of carrier coverage, claims handling, and alleged deceptive sales practices
relating to these carriers. In each of these individual insureds’ claims, the Company attempts to dismiss, challenge or
resolve the claims as quickly as possible.
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ITEM 1A—RISK FACTORS

There were no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2016.
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ITEM 2—UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

There were no unregistered sales of equity securities during the six months ended June 30, 2017.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Employee Awards

Pursuant to certain restricted stock award agreements, we allow the surrender of restricted shares by certain employees
to satisfy statutory tax withholding obligations on vested restricted stock awards. During the three months ended June
30, 2017, there were no actual or deemed share repurchases.

ITEM 3—DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4—MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5—OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 6—EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated by reference herein:
Exhibit
No. Description

10.1
Health Insurance Innovations, Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed on May 24, 2017)

10.2# Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for executives (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2017)

10.3# Form of Restricted Stock Award for non-employee directors (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2017)

10.4# Form of Performance Share and Restricted Stock Award Agreement for executives (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2017)

10.5#
Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated June 14, 2017, between Gavin
Southwell and the Company (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Form 8-K filed on
June 20, 2017)

10.6#

Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated June 14, 2017, between
Michael Hershberger and the Company (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Form 8-K
filed on June 20, 2017)

10.7# Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated June 14, 2017, between Sheldon Wang and the Company
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2017)

10.8# Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated June 14, 2017, between Bruce Telkamp and the Company
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2017)

10.9# Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan of the Company, approved June 14, 2017 and effective as of
July 1, 2017 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2017)

10.10

Credit Agreement dated July 17, 2017 among Health Plan Intermediaries Holdings, LLC, as borrower,
certain affiliates and subsidiaries, as guarantors, and SunTrust Bank, as lender (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed on July 19, 2017)

31.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
31.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
32** Section 1350 Certifications
100.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Document

*    Document is filed with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
**    Document is furnished with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
#    Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement contemplated by Item 15(a)(3) of Form
10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

HEALTH INSURANCE INNOVATIONS, INC.

August 4, 2017 /s/ Gavin D. Southwell
GAVIN D. SOUTHWELL
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER)

August 4, 2017 /s/ Michael D. Hershberger
MICHAEL D. HERSHBERGER
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, SECRETARY AND TREASURER
(PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER)
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